RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Meeting

March 27, 2017

PRESENT: Mr. Nick Edwards Mr. Forrest Greenwood Mr. Darryl McGill Mrs. Elaine Middlestetter Mrs. Dona Seger-Lawson Deputy Mayor Mike Schweller Mayor Bob Baird

This is a summary of the City Council meeting held on Monday, March 27, 2017. Mayor Baird called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm and the Clerk called the roll.

After polling members of City Council, as there were no corrections or additions to the **work session and regular meeting minutes of February 27, 2017** Mayor Baird declared the minutes approved as written.

MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS/SPECIAL GUEST

The Mayor swore in Karen McGill to the Village Review Board. Her term expires 1-31-19. The Mayor thanked Karen for volunteering to serve on this board.

Next, Tosha Shupe-Sugar Maple Chairperson came to give Council an update on the Sugar Maple Festival. The theme this year is Superheroes. The parade will start at 10:30 on Saturday, April 22. All the festivities in the park will be over by 5:00 when the beer garden opens. More information about the festival can be found on the city's website.

Mayor Baird read a proclamation that was presented to the Bellbrook boys swim and dive team. Coach Rob Johnson and members of the swim and dive team were at the meeting to accept the proclamation from the City. The Mayor and Council congratulated the team for a successful season.

PUBLIC HEARING OF ORDINANCES

Mrs. Middlestetter read **Ordinance 2017-1** An Ordinance Adopting and Enacting a New Code for the City of Bellbrook Providing for the Adoption and Publication of New Matter in the Updated and Revised Codified Ordinances and Repealing Ordinances and Resolutions in Conflict Therewith. MuniCode recently updated the Code to include ordinances passed through July 2016. The Code has been reduced significantly in size with the changes approved last year. Mr. Schlagheck said one reason for the change is the presence on the internet. It will be much easier to search for items in the code. It will also be updated in real time.

Being a public hearing Mayor Baird opened up for public comment. Seeing no comments from the public the Mayor closed the public hearing and asked for a motion. **Mrs. Middlestetter made a motion to adopt Ordinance 2017-1**. Mrs. Seger-Lawson seconded the motion. The Clerk called the roll. Mrs. Middlestetter, yes; Mrs. Seger-Lawson, yes; Mr. Edwards, yes; Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mr. McGill, yes; Mr. Schweller, yes; Mayor Baird, yes. The motion carried 7-0.

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Meeting

March 27, 2017

Mr. Edwards read **Ordinance 2017-2** An Ordinance Amending Part Four – Traffic Code of the Bellbrook Municipal Code. In the recodification process, references were found that were not correct. This ordinance fixes those references in the Traffic Code.

Being a public hearing Mayor Baird opened up for public comment. Seeing no comments from the public the Mayor closed the public hearing and asked for a motion. Mr. Edwards made a motion to adopt Ordinance 2017-2. Mr. McGill seconded the motion. The Clerk called the roll. Mr. Edwards, yes; Mr. McGill, yes; Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mrs. Middlestetter, yes; Mrs. Seger-Lawson, yes; Mr. Schweller, yes; Mayor Baird. The motion carried 7-0.

Mr. Schweller read **Ordinance 2017-3** An Ordinance Amending Part Six – General Offenses Code of the Bellbrook Municipal Code. In the recodification process, references were found that were not correct. This ordinance fixes those references in the General Offenses Code.

Being a public hearing Mayor Baird opened up for public comment. Seeing no comments from the public the Mayor closed the public hearing and asked for a motion. **Mr. Schweller made a motion to adopt Ordinance 2017-3.** Mr. Greenwood seconded the motion. The Clerk called the roll. Mr. Schweller, yes; Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mr. Edwards, yes; Mr. McGill, yes; Mrs. Middlestetter, yes; Mrs. Seger-Lawson, yes; Mayor Baird, yes. The motion carried 7-0.

INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCES

RESOLUTIONS

CITY MANAGER REPORT

Mr. Schlagheck said on April 12 there will be a Walkable Community Workshop that will focus on the downtown area. It starts at 11:30 with lunch provided. Information has been posted on the web site.

Mr. Schlagheck said there was an article in the Dayton Daily News regarding the Comprehensive Plan Update that quoted him out of context. The article stated that the main reason for updating the plan is "growth and expansion." The reporter viewed the February meeting recording and quoted Mr. Schlagheck incorrectly. The Comprehensive Plan update has multiple objectives including planning for the future of downtown and the western commercial end. The Walkable Community Workshop is the first step of updating the Comprehensive Plan.

Mr. Schlagheck spoke about the General Fund Renewal Levy on May 2nd. This renewal levy will have no increase in taxes. The city receives over \$200,000 from this levy. Residents will be mailed a postcard with information about the levy. Information is also posted on the web site. Mr. Schlagheck said it is the only item on the ballot in May. He encouraged everyone to get out and vote.

Next, Mr. Schlagheck spoke about lead and copper mapping. The State legislature passed a bill in September 2016 amending the reporting requirements for water service providers. The Service Department did an excellent job in putting together a map showing buildings built prior to 1988 that

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Meeting

March 27, 2017

may have a greater risk for lead in their plumbing and fixtures. The Service Department is not aware of any lead service lines in the service area.

Mr. Schlagheck showed proofs to Council of possible options for new banners for spring and summer. The banner will incorporate the city's new logo. They decided on one and Mr. Schlagheck said he will place the order. The goal is to have the banners in place in time for the Sugar Maple Festival.

Mr. Schlagheck spoke about SB331, which became effective earlier this week. One of the topics, small cell facilities in the public right of way, may have a significant impact on cities across the State. Small cell facilities, or wireless antennae, are the latest technology to improve the speed of cellular and data traffic for mobile devices. This bill allows the placement of these facilities in the public right of way, with virtually no local control. The City has joined over 50 other cities in filing a lawsuit against this law. There is a \$2,000 financial commitment for the City to participate in this opposition.

Lastly, Mr. Schlagheck said the Township has requested a meeting with the city, school and park officials on Monday, April 17 at 5:30.

Mr. Schweller asked Mr. Schlagheck about the status of our salt supply. Mr. Schlagheck said we will be taking delivery of more salt soon due to our contract with ODOT. The township will allow us to store the salt at their facility. Mr. Schlagheck said next year, as we approach the ordering of salt, we can look to order from a vendor that only requires delivery of the salt if it's needed.

Mr. Greenwood asked Mr. Schlagheck if any issues of the museum are being addressed. Mr. Schlagheck said the Service Department has met with Mr. Bartlett. The issues have been prioritized and are being taken care of as time permits. Some issues may need to be completed by an outside contractor.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

<u>Service</u>: Mrs. Seger-Lawson received a report from Dale Wilson, Service Director. She read many of the accomplishments of the Service Department for 2016.

Safety: Mr. Greenwood said the Police Department will soon begin their neighborhood walks. The schedule for those walks is in the city newsletter.

Finance/Audit: No Report.

Community Affairs:-

OLD BUSINESS-

NEW BUSINESS-

Ohio Division of Liquor Control Notice-The City was sent a notice of a change in ownership of a local business that has a liquor license. Council did not have any objections.

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Meeting

March 27, 2017

OPEN DISCUSSION-

Mr. McGill attended an event at the Greene County Library in Xenia that introduced Makerspace. It is a lab where patrons can explore both new and traditional technologies.

<u>ADJOURN</u>

Being no further business to come before this regular session of the Bellbrook City Council, Mayor Baird declared the meeting adjourned at 7:55 pm.

Robert L. Baird, Mayor

Jami L. Kinion, Clerk of Council